ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, | NTERNATI ONAL
TRADE AND TOURI SM
April 17, 2007
5:07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve M ke Doogan
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 217

"An Act relating to required onboard disclosures and displays
about tours, flightseeing oper ati ons, ot her shor esi de
activities, and visitors bureaus; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSHB 217(EDT) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 217

SHORT TI TLE. TOURI SM DI SCLOSURES AND NOTI CES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HOLMES

03/ 22/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 07 (H) EDT, JUD

04/ 03/ 07 (H) EDT AT 5:30 PM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 03/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 07 (H) M NUTE( EDT)

04/ 10/ 07 (H) EDT AT 5:00 PM BARNES 124

04/ 10/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 10/ 07 (H M NUTE( EDT)

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -1- April 17, 2007



04/ 17/ 07 (H EDT AT 5:00 PM BARNES 124
W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES, Menber

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 217.

ROB SCHEER, Owner

Great Al aska Lunberjack Show and Experience Al aska Tours
Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

PATRI Cl A SCHAUGHNESSY, Enpl oyee

Experience Al aska Tours

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

CARSTENS JASPER, Enpl oyee

Experi ence Al aska Tours

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

CHUCK SLAGLE, Omner

Bar anof and Conpany

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

STACEY HUNT, Enpl oyee

Great Al aska Lunberjack Show

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

JANI CE GARCI A, Enpl oyee

G eat Al aska Lunberjack Show

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

JOHN DUNLAP, Manager

Al len Marine Tours

Al len Marine Inc.

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

KARI ERI CKSON, Division Manager
Gray Line of Al aska

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 2- April 17, 2007



Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

DOT W LSQN, Owner

Coastal Helicopters Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

CH P THOVA
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R MARK NEUMAN cal |l ed the House Special Committee on Econom c
Devel opnent, International Trade and Tourism neeting to order at
5:07:44 PM Represent ati ves Kohring, Lynn, Johansen, Doll, and
Neuman were present at the call to order. Representative Gtto
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Represent ati ve Hol nes
was al so in attendance.

HB 217- TOURI SM DI SCLOSURES AND NOTI CES

5:08:15 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 217, "An Act relating to required onboard
di scl osures and displays about tours, flightseeing operations,
ot her shoreside activities, and visitors bureaus; and providing
for an effective date."

5:08: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved CSHB 217, 25-LS0696\L. There
bei ng no objection, Version L was adopt ed.

5:09:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY  HOLMES, Alaska State Legislature,
informed the commttee that previous testinony on HB 217 raised
sonme concerns about the |anguage of the bill. In an effort to
preserve the language of the Alaska Cruise Ship Initiative
(initiative), HB 217 created an "and/or" option. She said the
Comm ttee Substitute corrects that situation by setting up one
set of criteria that is applicable to all tours that are sold.
In addition, it creates a three or four part disclosure that
reveals: that the on-board sale is a paid pronotion; that other

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 3- April 17, 2007



alternatives are available for a lower price at the port of

call; and the address, website, and tel ephone nunber of the
visitor's bureaus in future ports of call with a list of tour
oper at or s. Representative Holnes continued to explain that if

the commi ssion paid to the cruise ship exceeds 33 percent of the
total cost of the excursion, an additional disclosure of that
fact is required. This change, she said, wll protect
proprietary information of |ocal Al aska businesses and wll set
a threshold of what a consuner m ght conclude is the reasonable
and expected cost of a conm ssion.

5:13:21 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN r emar ked:
There was one nore change from what had been probably
a sponsor substitute. And that would have renoved

| anguage that is in the initiative, and in trying to
reach a boundary between all the parties concerned.

That has to do with the words that shall "...and
shall result in a penalty of not nore than $100 for
each violation." That is in Sec. C, of the cruise

ship regulation disclosure in 45.50.474, so that's
been retained in there...

CHAI R NEUMAN indicated that he had discussed the percentage of
the threshold with the sponsor and the drafter of the origina

initiative. He pointed out that over one-half of the tourist
rel ated businesses in the state have five or |ess enployees and
that he was searching for an accord for all parties. He then
referred to the change on page 1, line 14, that replaced the
words "all ports of call”™ with "each future port of call."”
5:16:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether there would be a definition in
the statute of "paid pronotion.”

5:16: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES replied that the |anguage cane from the
initiative. She said that she would consider a change to

"comm ssion. "

5:17:17 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -4- April 17, 2007



CHAI R NEUMAN indicated that the definition of "paid pronotion”
is in statute.

5:17:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN inquired as to whether the sponsors of the
initiative are confortable with [Version L].

5:18: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES responded that she has not been able to
contact the sponsors and that she does not believe that they are
confortable with Version L. She added that she did not want to
speak for them

5:18:38 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN added that Sec. 2 was in the original |anguage of
the initiative; thereby, the original |anguage was retained in
Version L.

5:19:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether Representative Hol nes agreed
wi th Representative Neuman's statenent.

REPRESENTATI VE  HOLMES  expressed her under st andi ng, from
di scussions with the original initiative sponsors, that previous
to the passage of the initiative, a violation of disclosure |aws
was considered an Alaska Unfair Trade Practices Act violation.
The initiative unintentionally added |anguage that |owered the
penalty to $100 for each violation. Representati ve Hol nes
continued to explain that Version K reinstated the unfair trade
practices act penalty; however, Version L reinstates the
original language of the initiative and again sets the penalty
at $100 for each violation.

5:20: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked again whether Representative Hol nes
felt that HB 217 reasonably reflects the intent of the
initiative sponsors and of the voters. He said, "Are we
violating the intent of that initiative, if we were to pass this
out ?"

5:21:13 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 5- April 17, 2007



REPRESENTATIVE HOLMES replied that the initiative sponsors
i ndicated that the |anguage of the initiative "is a floor, not a
ceiling." The Al aska Suprene Court has indicated that a change
can be mde to the initiative unless there is a change of
di rection. The intent of HB 217 is to keep strong disclosure
provisions and take care of unintended consequences. She
acknow edged that the sponsors have not read Version L.

5:22:50 PM

CHAIR NEUVAN reiterated that the original ballot I[anguage is in
Version L.

5:23: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the original sponsor is out of
t own. He expressed his belief that the original sponsor would
not accept the change of the percentage of the threshold from 25
percent to 33 percent. Representative Gatto said that a
comm ssion of 33 percent of the total cost of a tour is not a
reasonabl e percentage and that he would not support Version L

5:24:01 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN requested that Representative Holnes explain how
t he percentage is deterni ned.

5:24: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES explained that if a tour costs $100, and
the comm ssion is $33 or less, the disclosure would be that a
paid pronotion is being paid. If a tour costs $100 and the
conm ssion was $34 or higher, that comm ssion would need to be
di scl osed as a paid pronotion of 33 percent or greater.

5:25:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL expressed her concern about the possible
conflict with unfair trade practices statutes. She suggested
that HB 217 should conformto existing statutes.

5:26:31 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES informed the commttee that existing
statutes for penalties for unfair trade practices are to apply

under Version L, and they allow for penalties of up to three
ti mes damages or $500, whichever is greater. Exi sting statutes

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 6- April 17, 2007



also allow for the attorney general to file suit. Those
penalties, she said are for a mninum of $1,000 and a nmaxi num of
$25, 000 per occurrence. Representative Hol nmes suggested that
there is confusion over whether the penalties in the initiative
override those contained in the unfair trade practices act and
that a | egal anal ysis may be needed.

5:27:43 PM

CHAIR NEUMAN said that the l|egal aspect of HB 217 could be
studi ed by the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

5:28: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the nmajority of the discussion
has been from the perspective of the vendor and that he wanted
to hear from the consuner. He suggested that the 33 percent
commi ssion cost is infuriating.

5:29:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN referred to page 2, line 1, and asked
for the reason flight seeing operations are specified.

5:30: 28 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HOLMES replied that "...tours, flightseeing
operations, or other shoreside activities..." is the original

| anguage of the initiative.

5:30:47 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN i nvited public testinony.
5:31:21 PM

ROB SCHEER, owner, G eat Al aska Lunberjack Show and Experience
Al aska Tours, infornmed the commttee that he is concerned by the
menber's coments regarding the value of the comm ssion. \V/ g
Scheer said that the conmission pays for a very extensive
ei ght-nmonth marketi ng canpai gn provided by the cruise lines that
market to mllions of consunmers around the world. M. Scheer
stated that his business nodel is built to achieve success for
his tour, which has happened after an investnent of mllions of
dollars in the Ketchikan community. He said the comm ssions are
proprietary information and should not be disclosed in any
manner . M. Scheer expressed his support of HB 217 as a

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -7- April 17, 2007



begi nning step to change the initiative that was enacted to hurt

the cruise Ilines. He suggested that the commttee should
research the "free market abusiveness" nodel of the tourism
i ndustry. M. Scheer concluded by saying that his business

enploys 70 workers and his custonmers support his conmunity's
econony with mllions of dollars.

5:35: 08 PM

PATRI CIl A SCHAUGHNESSY inforned the conmttee that she is an
enpl oyee of Experience Al aska Tours. She said that the cruise
line provides advertising and booking services that extend
beyond a paid pronotion, and that these are services her conpany
can not afford. In addition, she pointed out that if she hired
an advertising firm her contract with them would be private.
Ms. Schaughnessy concluded by saying that the commssion is
reflected in the total price of the tour and the consunmer nakes
hi s/ her decision based on the total price.

5:36: 51 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked whether a comm ssion of any percentage is
accept abl e.

5:37:12 PM
M5. SHAUGHNESSY answer ed yes.
5:37:29 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN further asked whether a disclosure of any anmount is
accept abl e.

5:37:46 PM
MS. SHAUGHNESSY answer ed no.
5:37:54 PM

CARSTENS JASPER inforned the comrittee that he is an enpl oyee of
Experi ence Al aska Tours. M. Jasper expressed his belief that
visitors to Alaska are very satisfied with the experiences
provi ded by the Al askan tourism industry. He noted that other
i ndustries have large mark-up margins and the cost of products
and the infrastructure to support them nust be taken into
consi derati on. He said that this disclosure requirenment could
apply to any busi ness.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 8- April 17, 2007



5:39:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked at what point should there be
regul ati on of unfair business practices.

5:40:17 PM

MR. JASPER opined that dissatisfaction with the industry or an
outcry from consunmers would call for regulation; in contrast
his tours often have repeat custoners. He stressed that tourism
is the only industry that is thriving in Southeast.

5:41:18 PM

CHUCK SLAGLE, owner, Baranof and Conpany, infornmed the commttee
that he has been selling tours through the cruise industry since

1981. Since then, the market has grown dramatically and the
cruise lines have lowered prices to attract business. M.
Slagle pointed out that custonmers choose the tours through the
cruise lines, but before the cruise begins. He said that 80

percent of cruise passengers have searched for tours and cruise
lines on the Wrld Wde Wb (internet), and are aware of the 350
tours available in Southeast. The internet creates the free
mar ket for consuners. M. Slagle stressed that tour operators
realize that the commssion to the cruise lines is cheaper than
establishing their own sales staff and advertising prograns.
The best choice for his conpany is to use the cruise industry
for marketing its tours.

5:44:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked how many cruise ships wth which M.
Sl agl e negoti at es.

5:44:48 PM

MR. SLAGLE answered that he works with all of the cruise |ines.
In fact, 80 to 90 percent of his custoners are passengers of
Norwegian Cruise Line, Carnival Cruise Line, and Regency
Crui ses.

5:45: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked whet her each contract is for a simlar
pri ce.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 9- April 17, 2007



5:45:31 PM

MR. SLAGLE responded that he does not have a contract and the

commi ssions vary between cruise lines. In answer to questions,
M. Slagle explained that he infornms the cruise lines of his
whol esale price and they add the conm ssions. He further

expl ai ned that nobst comm ssions are simlar, but not identical
in price.

5:45: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed that cruise passengers are very
educated and savvy, and asked M. Slagle whether voters are,
al so.

5:46: 22 PM

MR. SLAGLE replied no; voters are uninforned and uneducated
about the tourismindustry.

5:47:20 PM

STACEY HUNT, enployee, G eat Al aska Lunberjack Show, stated that
the only person to have detailed information about a conpany's

profit margin is a stockholder or investor. M. Hunt said that
posting profit margins with tour information will force cruise
passengers on vacation to think about noney; thereby, cheapening
their Al askan experience. She said that the tourism consuner

has a choice of activities.
5:48: 34 PM
JANI CE GARCI A, enpl oyee, G eat Al aska Lunberjack Show, expressed

her belief that conpanies who have a relationship with the
cruise ships have hired them as their advertising and marketing

agents. Ms. Garcia stated that the disclosure of comm ssions
damages tour conpanies relationships with the cruise lines and
makes the guests unconfortable. She suggested that the

passengers would be confused by the breakdown of the tour's
cost.

5:49:52 PM
JOHN DUNLAP, WManager, Allen Marine Tours, Allen Mrine Inc.,
informed the conmttee that Allen Marine Tours enploys 200

peopl e during the sunmer. Allen Marine Inc., also operates a
shipyard in Sitka, and has earned its success follow ng 40 years

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -10- April 17, 2007



of business in Southeast Al aska. M. Dunlap expressed his
belief that his fellow Al askans voted on the head tax provision
of the initiative and did not wunderstand the disclosure
provi si on.

5:51: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether M. Dunlap agreed with M.
Slagle that the voters were unaware of the provisions of the
initiative.

5:52: 00 PM

MR. DUNLAP affirmed that he felt that the voters did not
understand the initiative, except for the assessnment of the head
t ax.

5:52:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why M. Dunlap did not take a poll in
Ket chi kan to support his testinony.

5:53: 00 PM

KARI ERICKSON, Division Mnager, Gay Line of Al aska, stated
that her conpany hires forty enployees seasonally, and four year
ar ound. She noted that her conpany solicits comrents from
guests and there are few conplaints about the price of tours
Ms. Erickson expressed her dissatisfaction with the initiative
and urged the conmttee to support HB 217.

5:54: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING indicated that constituents in his
district have contacted him have confirned that they knew about
t he provisions, and do not support changes to the initiative.
5:55: 37 PM

M5. ERICKSEN stated that she has polled a |lot of people on the
initiative and was told by voters that the smaller issues could
be easily changed.

5:56:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what ki nd of poll was taken.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -11- April 17, 2007



5:56:26 PM

M5. ERI CKSEN responded that she asked friends, neighbors, and
t hose who are inpacted by the initiative in her conmunity.

5:56:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether there has been any testinony
from an i ndependent tour operator who does not contract with the
crui se industry.

5:57:29 PM

DOT WLSON, owner, Coastal Helicopters Inc., stated that her
busi ness does not contract with the cruise industry. M. WIson
stressed that she supports free enterprise.

5:57:51 PM

CHP THOVA inforned the commttee that he is a supporter of
initiative. M. Thona expressed his belief that the sponsors of
the initiative have not reviewed Version L, and are not aware of
the increase of the threshold percentage from 25 percent to 33
percent. He stated that he supported the 25 percent figure. He
said that he also agrees wth wearlier testinony about the
avai lability of tour information on the internet, and said that
internet access may be a solution to the problem In the
future, he expects that the nunber of tours sold on the ships
will be about 10 percent. M. Thoma pointed out that, at this
time, $250 million in shoreside tours are sold in northern
Sout heast per season. He ~concluded by saying that [the
di sclosure] is information that consuners need.

6: 00: 52 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN observed that negotiating inprovenents to HB 217
has been very difficult due to conflicting testinony from
interested parties.

6: 02: 27 PM

MR. THOVA stated that the sponsors of the original initiative
are speaking for the passengers on the ship and for the
alternative tour operators who do not have their tours sold by
t he shi ps.

6: 02: 55 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -12- April 17, 2007



CHAI R NEUMAN asked whether there is conpetition anongst all of
the tour operators for business with the cruise ships.

6: 03:16 PM

MR. THOVA said, "Very little." He conpared the situation to a
[imted entry program

6: 03: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the percentage of tours sold on
the ships as conpared with the percentage of tours that are not
pre-sol d. This information, he said, would indicate to the
conmmittee the scope of the influence of the disclosure
requirenments.

6:04:16 PM

M5. WLSON informed the conmttee that pre-sold tours for her
busi ness are by direct inquiry or through travel agents.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether M. WIson knows the
profit margins of the travel agents.

M5. W LSON answered no.

6: 05: 19 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that public testinony was cl osed.

6: 05: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG expressed his enpathy with small
busi nesses who are required to divulge proprietary information
He suggested that initiatives nust be crafted carefully in the
future to avoid uni ntended consequences.

6: 06: 45 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN rem nded the commttee that other initiatives have
been anmended and that the legislative body is responsible for

t he process of discovery.

6: 07: 37 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -13- April 17, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated that the disclosure required by
the initiative is unfair for businesses. He noted that in the
mar ket pl ace, the total price should dictate the success of a
product or service. He opined that HB 217 eases the inpact on

smal | business and that he will support the Committee Substitute
for HB 217.
6: 09: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO rem nded the conmittee of the failure of
the Gas Reserves Tax Initiative. He said when other ballot
neasures have failed; the |legislature never considered passing a
bill for the same purpose. He renarked:
Even if you feel, that this bill was presented to the
public as an initiative, not the bill, but the

initiative, was incorrectly voted on, ny personal
feelings, [the] public has a right to be wong. ... |
don't know that the public is ever wong; they just
are allowed to mke votes.... It is the state's
citizens that voted for the initiative. ... But in
order to do what they asked us to do, we have a cruise
ship head tax, and nobst everyone agrees that's okay,
[we have] an Ocean Ranger program which was the

second big thing in the bill, and now it starts to
deteriorate. ... | wll never say that the public did
not read far enough. ... | have trouble saying we need

to, we need to nmeddle wth the public's vote. ...
These bills are not enforcing what the public asked
for, they are altering ... | am not about to overturn
what the public asked for.

6:13: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL stated her belief that sone regulation is
needed in a situation where there is a grow ng nonopoly. She
noted that the anti-trust |laws nay have applied to this type of
situation in the past. Representative Doll expressed her
support for HB 217 and her understanding of the profit margins
of  busi ness. She concluded that her support is for the

conprom se crafted to assist the small businesses.
6:15:18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that he nust assune that the voters

know what they are voting for. Each vote counts whet her or not
the voter has a conplete understanding of a |ong and conplicated

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -14- April 17, 2007



i ssue. He expressed his concern about the 33 percent threshold
included in Version L. Representative Lynn said that he can
address that issue in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

6: 16: 46 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN agreed that this commttee is the first stop for HB
217 and there has been a lot of work done with all of the
parties concer ned. He pointed out that this is the third
hearing for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO informed the commttee that he had an
anmendnent .

6:18:47 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN suggested that the anendnent be offered in the
House Judiciary Standing Committee since the initiative sponsors
are out of town.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that his anendnent applies to page 2,
line 14. He then read:

If the value paid by the business is a comm ssion of
nore than ten percent, of any single sale, the
di scl osure shall also state that nore than ten percent
comm ssion is being retained by the person or entity
meki ng the sale.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that his anmendnment has been
accepted by the sponsor of HB 217.

6:21: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recommended that the sponsor of the bill
of fer the anendnent in the proper form

6:21: 30 PM

CHAIR NEUMAN confirmed that the anendnent was not offered to
this commttee.

6:21: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Johansen noved to report HB 217, Version L, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 15- April 17, 2007



271(EDT) was reported out of the House Special Conmittee on
Econom ¢ Devel oprment, International Trade and Tourism

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmittee on Econom c Devel opnent, International Trade
and Tourism neeting was adjourned at 6:23 p. m

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -16- April 17, 2007



